
Minutes 
Planning and Zoning Meeting 

February 25, 2013 
 
 
On this 25th day of February, 2013, at 7:00 p.m., the Planning and Zoning Commission convened in a 
Regular Meeting, and the same being opened to the public at their regular meeting place; thereof, at City 
Hall, 303 S. Teel Drive, Devine, Texas.  Notice of said meeting having been prescribed in Chapter 551, 
Government Code, and Vernon’s Texas Codes, Annotated, and the following members thereof, being 
present, namely: 
 
     Onis Wiemers, Secretary 

Jim Lawler 
Ed Dougherty 
Darrell Murdock 
Rick Maxwell 
Mike Herring 

 
Absent being: Doug Wilkins, Chairman; thus constituting a quorum. 
 
Personnel present:  Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer. 
 
Others present: None. 
 
Commissioner Wiemers called the meeting to order. 
 
The first order of business was to discuss and consider approving minutes from the meeting on February 
11th, 2013.  
 
The Planning & Zoning Commissioners reviewed the minutes.   
 
Motion made by Commissioner Dougherty, seconded by Commissioner Lawler to approve the minutes 
from the meeting on February 11th, 2013.   
 
    Ayes  --  Six 
    Nays  --  None 
    Absent  --  One (Commissioner Wilkins) 
                
Motion carried. 
 
The second item was to discuss & consider changing the zoning classification of property consisting of 
approximately 19 acres of land located along the north side of Hondo Avenue E. in the area of IH-35 in 
the City of Devine, from Class A. Single Family Residence District to Class H. Commercial Business 
District, which is proposed to include any or all properties with the following addresses: 1009 Hondo 
Ave. E; 697 Hondo Ave. E.; 691 Hondo Ave. E.; Hondo Ave. E (R56809). 
 
 
 
 
 



Planning and Zoning Meeting 
February 25, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
Commissioner Wiemers asked Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer, for information regarding the 
proposed zoning change.  Mr. Rawlings explained that, in accordance with state law, the Planning & 
Zoning Commission was required to make a Preliminary Report regarding any change in zoning 
classification and to hold a Public Hearing on the Preliminary Report before creating a Final Report to 
submit to the City Council.  He explained that the City Council was required to have a Public Hearing on 
the Final Report before they could take action to approve the zoning change.  Mr. Rawlings also stated 
that he had spoken with Tom Cate, City Attorney, regarding the Preliminary Report who stated that the 
minutes from the meeting of the Planning & Zoning Commission would suffice as the Preliminary 
Report.  He explained that information was provided in the Commissioners packets regarding a checklist 
that he had created and the applicable state laws from the Local Government Code, Chapter 211 that 
explained the process and outlined items that the Commissioners should consider in determining 
whether or not to change the zoning classification of property in the City.  Among these items, he 
explained, the zoning change must be in compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  He also 
informed the Commissioners that a copy of the City’s last approved Comprehensive Plan, from 1989, 
and a copy of a map indicating the area that the proposed zoning change will include were also included 
in the packets provided to the Commissioners.  Mr. Rawlings referred to the information from the Local 
Government Code regarding protests to a Zoning Change and informed the Commissioners that the 
protest must be in writing and signed by the owners of at least 20 percent of either, 1) the area of the lots 
covered by the proposed change or 2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered 
by the proposed change and extending 200 feet from that area.  He explained that the area of streets and 
alleys were included in the area in calculating the percentage of land area.  He also let the Commissioners 
know that in the event of a protest, the zoning change could still be approved by the City Council but 
only by an affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all its members. 
 
Discussion followed regarding the procedures to change the zoning classification.  Commissioner 
Maxwell inquired about two of the properties that were currently occupied by businesses; namely Sonic 
Drive In #5251; and the Chevron gas station which also houses McDonalds, Subway and First Klass 
Cleaners.  Mr. Rawlings explained that there were records of the businesses coming to the City for 
zoning changes prior to beginning construction and operation of these businesses; however, no 
ordinance could be found amending the Zoning Ordinance. Commissioner Wiemers asked if this would 
essentially be a formality to make the change previously approved official.  Mr. Rawlings indicated that it 
would.  Commissioner Dougherty inquired if this zoning change was requested by the property owners.  
Mr. Rawlings explained that the zoning change proposal was initiated by the City.  He stated that there 
had been numerous inquiries on the property in this area since the completion of the IH-35 access road 
north of Hondo Avenue, and that the city wanted to establish the zoning for allowable uses to help 
encourage development in this area.  Commissioner Herring inquired about a second blue line on the 
map indicating the area of the proposed zoning change.  Mr. Rawlings explained that this line marked the 
200-foot area adjacent to the proposed zoning change, the owners of which would receive notice of the 
public hearings in addition to the property owners in the area involved in the proposed change. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Planning and Zoning Meeting 
February 25, 2013 
Page 3 
 
 
Discussion was held regarding the location of the property and the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  Mr. 
Rawlings informed the Commissioners that the city has met with a consultant regarding updating the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan.  Discussion was held regarding the allowable uses in a Class H. Commercial 
Business District with reference to the City’s Zoning Ordinance. Commissioner Maxwell commented 
that the area is open land, for the most part with only a few dwellings to the north.  Commissioner 
Dougherty inquired what the height regulations were for buildings in the Class H. Commercial Business 
District classification.  Mr. Rawlings read the regulation regarding height restrictions for this classification 
from the Zoning Ordinance, which reads, “No building shall exceed 75 feet in height unless set back 
from all street lines one foot for each two feet of its height beginning about 75 feet, to a maximum ten 
feet of setback.”  Commissioner Dougherty inquired if the city could limit the number of stories to four 
in this classification.  Mr. Rawlings explained that this would require a change to the Zoning Ordinance, 
and stated that the city was considering revising the City’s Zoning Ordinance in conjunction with 
updating the Comprehensive Plan.  Commissioner Dougherty stated that he had concerns over placing a 
burden on the Fire Department by someone building a multi-story building.  Commissioner Maxwell 
stated that the insurance on a multi-story building would become an issue depending on available fire 
service response.  Commissioner Dougherty stated that the area seemed best used as commercial, 
especially in consideration of businesses already established in the area and the proximity to IH-35 and 
State Highway 173.  Mr. Rawlings informed the Commissioners that the Texas Department of 
Transportation is only providing limited access to the IH-35 frontage road which will require the 
eventual addition of one or more streets in the area which will work to reduce traffic congestion on the 
frontage road as the area develops. Commissioner Dougherty stated that, from a fire safety standpoint, 
having the area developed would be better fire protection than leaving it as it is with poor access and a 
lot of brush and grasses; structure fires, especially those surrounded by pavement, would be much easier 
to control than a brush fire.  All Commissioners present indicated that they were in favor of the 
proposed zoning change of the indicated property to a Class H. Commercial Business District 
classification.   
 
Motion made by Commissioner Herring, seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to adjourn the meeting. 
 
    Ayes  --  Six 
    Nays  --  None 

Absent  --  One (Commissioner Wilkins) 
                
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
              
                       Chairman 
 
 
 
____________________________     
         Secretary                


